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CITY OF EAST POINT
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

September 20, 2012 - 7:00 P.M.
Official Meeting Minutes

Jefferson Recreational Center
1431 Norman Berry Drive
East Point, Georgia 30344

Board Members:

Commissioner Shean ATKINS, Chair

Commissioner Linda SHELDON, Co-Chair - Absent

Commissioner Joel TUCKER, Provisional Chair

Commissioner Dr. Lydia WARES

Commissioner Gregory FANN - Absent

Commissioner Matthew MALLORY

Commissioner William BRYANT

Commissioner Davita WASHINGTON

Commissioner Karen RENÉ

Also Present:

Ms. Linda DUNLAVY
City Attorney

Ms. Regina CARTER
Senior Planner

Ms. Keyetta HOLMES
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James HAMMOND
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Richard RANDOLPH
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I. CALL TO ORDER:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Good evening. I'm Shean Atkins

and I'm the Chair of the East Point Planning & Zoning Commission

and tonight our regularly scheduled September meeting is now called

to order and Staff would you please do Roll Call for quorum.

II. ROLL CALL:

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Rene.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Here.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Fann.

COMMISSIONER FANN: (No response.)

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Atkins.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: (No response.)

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Present.

MS. CARTER: Mr. Chair, we have a quorum.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Excellent. Thank you. In lieu of

the pray, this Body recognizes a Moment of Silence so at this time,

we will take a Moment of Silence.

III. MOMENT OF SILENCE:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. If every one would

please stand and join me in the Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. Commissioners, at

this time, I will entertain a motion to adopt our agenda for this

evening.

V. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Mr. Chairman.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: I make a motion that we adopt

the agenda for this afternoon.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I second the motion.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Bryant and seconded by Commissioner René that we adopt the

agenda as printed. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The agenda is adopted. Commissioners at this time we'll move onto

New Business. Staff, would you please sound Case Number 2012 "Z"
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as in zebra-018-09.

VI. NEW BUSINESS:

MS. CARTER: This is a Citywide Text Amendment to amend

the language in Chapter 2, Article L, Section 10-2235 and -- I'm

sorry, just a minute -- and J 10-2219 and Article L 10-2235.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: . Okay. This Agenda Item

requires a public hearing. Commissioners at this time I will entertain

a motion to open the public hearing for Case Number 2012 "Z" as in

zebra-018-09.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Mr. Chair, so moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares and seconded by Commissioner Bryant that we open the

public hearing. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now open. Staff, because this is a text

amendment, would you go ahead and please present this case.

MS. CARTER: This case comes to the Commission from

Council to request the changes for P&Z to state the change for the

record as a recommendation through public hearing from Planning &

Zoning Commission to the Council as to how you would like the the
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development notifications sent to those making a zoning change.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. I will now ask if there are

any proponents here to speak to this particular Agenda Item.

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, I'll ask if there are

any opponents here to speak to this Agenda Item.

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none of those,

Commissioners, I'll entertain a motion to close the the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares and seconded by Commissioner Mallory that we close the

public hearing. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now closed. Commissioners, you've heard from

Staff that this is a request from the Council to the Commission that

we look at the proposed Changes for Public Notice for Zoning

Amendments both for property owners as well as for neighborhood

associations. Staff, is there any additional information that you'd like

to present to the Commission before I entertain a motion?
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MS. CARTER: No, there is none.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, there are a

total of five proposal. There are two for property owner notifications

and there are three for neighborhood association notifications. We

have been asked to do Roll Calls for these and so I'll take them

individually. Again, this is a text amendment, changes to Article J,

10-2219 and Article L, 10-2235 but first is notification for property

owner notices. The first proposal is the department shall require that

the applicant give notice of regular mail to all property owners within

500 feet of the boundaries of the subject property who appear on the

tax records of East Point as retrieved by the City's geographic

information system. I believe that this is how our system is

currently; is that correct? So if this would be status quo. This is how

the information was sent currently and so I will entertain a motion on

this particular proposal first and then we will do a Roll Call once we

get a second and have any discussion.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: On Case Number 2012Z-018-09,

2D first paragraph, I would like to make a motion to approve.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved and

properly seconded that we recommend approval of the very first

proposal under "D." Is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, we'll have a Roll Call

vote.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner René.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Yes

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Atkins -- oh, I'm sorry, Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Approve.

MS. CARTER: -- and Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Approve.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Great. The second

proposal is -- let me ask a question of legal. Because we got the

majority for that particular proposal, do we even need to entertain a

motion for the second proposal under this category.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Well, quite frankly, Mr. Chair,

I'm not sure that taking a vote on this first option is appropriate

because that is essentially what is in the ordinance today and so we

need to move -- we need to make a motion on the proposed

amendment so I would go forward with the second paragraph in

spite of the fact that you receive a majority for maintaining what's

already in this ordinance because, Council, as I understand it, has
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specifically requested that the second paragraph be considered by

P&Z.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you. And it is -- so

having said that, the reason I did entertain a motion on that is

because I this, Regina, you have forms for each of the proposals

including what the status quo is but we can also send that

information onto the Council so they'll know how we voted and so

thank you for that clarification, Madam Attorney and so at this time, I

will entertain a motion on the proposed, which is, I'll state: The

department shall require that the applicant give notice by regular

mail to all property owners within 750 feet of the boundaries of the

subject property will appear on the tax records of East Point as

retrieved by the City's geographic information system. So

Commissioners, the difference between this proposal and what's

currently on the books is that Council is requesting 750 feet as

opposed to the 500 feet that we're currently operating under and

we'll start with a motion for that, first.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: On Case Number 2012Z-018-09,

2D, Paragraph 2 I'd like to make a motion to recommend denial.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been recommended denial for

this proposal and it's been properly seconded. Is there any
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discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, we will now have a

Roll Call vote. Staff.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner René.

VIDEOGRAPHER: Microphone.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Deny.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Deny.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Deny.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Deny.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Denied.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Deny.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you. The next

section, Commissioners, is neighborhood association notices and of

these three, Staff, would you like to elaborate on any of these three

if any one is status quo and if they are all three proposed.

MS. CARTER: All three are in reference to the neighbor

associations, how notifications shall be sent to those neighbor

associations. The first is whether or not the development intent card

should be sent to all of the neighbor associations that have been
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registered with the City. Number 2 is to only send notification to

neighbor associations within the ward of the subject property and the

third option is to allow neighbor associations to opt out to receiving

cards all together.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: And if I understand correctly, it

has been requested of the Commission that we vote on these

individually with a Roll Call vote; is that correct?

MS. CARTER: Correct.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay and so currently the one

that we operate under is Number 2; is that right, only that the

notification goes to the ward?

MS. CARTER: Of the subject property.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Of the subject property.

MS. CARTER: Correct.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So Commissioners, just to

make sure that everyone understand, Number 2 is way we operate

currently. The notification card only goes to the registered neighbor

associations within the ward of the subject property. Number 1 and

Number 3 are new proposals coming to the Commission from the

Council and so we'll start with Number 1, the department shall

require that the applicant give notice by regular mail to all registered

City of East Point Neighbor Association Presidents and I'll entertain a

motion on that proposal.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Mr. Chairman.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Bryant.
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COMMISSIONER BRYANT: I make a motion that we not

agree with the -- that department shall require that the applicant give

notice by regular mail to all registered City of East Point neighbor

associations presidents.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay it's been moved and -- just

for clarification, Commissioner Bryant, that will be your motion is a

recommendation to Council that we do not support this proposal.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Right.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: And Commissioner Washington

seconded to that motion that we deny OR not recommend this

proposal, correct.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Any discussion

Commissioners?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So for this proposal, the

Commission -- the motion that's on the floor is that we do not

recommend that the developer or the applicant send notice to all of

the registered neighbor associations across the entire City. Okay,

just to be clear. So I think that we're ready, if there's no other

discussion, for Roll Call vote.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner René.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Deny.
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MS. CARTER: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Denied.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Deny.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Denied.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Denied.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Deny.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All right. I am then going to move

to proposal Number 3 and then come back to Number 2 because

Number 2 is the way we currently operate. Number 3, the proposal,

Commissioners, is that the department shall provide an opt out

clause in which a neighbor association may choose to not participate

in receiving development intent cards and so at this time, I'll

entertain a motion on that proposal. Before we do that, I'd like to

ask a question of Staff. We don't have a motion or second on the

floor. Do we not already allow for this because I know that there are

some neighbor associations that choose not to get involved with

zoning matters.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Right.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So do we not already allow this?

MS. CARTER: There are two separate matters at hand.

Currently, neighbor associations will opt out of not zoning matters as
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far as changing that come before the Commission but there are

permitting matters that go to a neighborhood which is called infield

development. Infield is where our neighborhoods may opt out. On

this particular -- these two Articles, these are issues that are coming

before the zoning Commission to vote as a recommendation to

Council so right now, the opt out clause is for infield development.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So for infield is what we

currently have and this would include zoning amendments so this will

be an opt out provision for neighborhood associations for zoning

amendments, okay. So at this time, Commissioners, I'll entertain a

motion.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: We're on Paragraph 3?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: 3, yes. It gives your

neighborhood association an opportunity to opt out.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Okay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: On Case Number 2012Z-018-09,

2E, Paragraph 3, a motion to recommend approval.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. There's been a motion to

recommend approval. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been moved by

Commissioner Tucker and seconded by Commissioner Mallory that we

recommend approval. Is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: I would just like to give a little bit

of discussion to this particular piece. I know that the motion on the

floor is to approve, to recommend approval and a second and I'm

happy to hear that from the Commissioners because one of the

things that I think is really important to know is that I understand the

intent and why we're discussing these things today, however, it

should be very clear that there are many neighborhood associations

or many neighborhoods around the City that, A, have no

neighborhood association; B, they set their owner meeting schedules

some which take the summers off. They don't meet during the

summers or they perhaps opt not to have any business for the

holidays or any of those things so I think to force a neighborhood to

deal with these issues I think would not be in the best interest of our

City because some neighborhoods have established themselves for

different purposes and perhaps one of their purposes may not be to

engage in matters of this so is there any other discussion?

COMMISSIONER WARES: Mr. Chair, are we saying by listing

this that they would have to do an opt out?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: No. What we're saying is that if a

neighborhood organization feels that they do not want to take up any

zoning matters, they would like to keep their neighborhood

association perhaps social or just none profit in nature or whatever,

they have the option to say we don't want to take up zoning matters

in our neighborhood association. We think that that's best done

some place else or in a difference form. They just simply don't want
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to take those things up so I think the neighborhood organization

should have the right to do that

COMMISSIONER WARES: They should.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: -- should they choose to.

COMMISSIONER WARES: But if they're not on the books and

we don't know about them anyway --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Right.

COMMISSIONER WARES: -- how would they find out?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Well, they wouldn't because I

think that this takes about, I think -- all of the proposals are for

registered neighborhood associations.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Registered neighborhood

associations.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes. So there could be

neighborhood -- you're exactly right. There could be neighborhood

associations that are not even registered with the City.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay. So in some way, it's going

to be helpful because you don't have to do it if you don't want to do

it?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All right.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So there's a motion and a second

on the floor for to recommend approval. Is there any other
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discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, are we ready for the

Roll Call vote?

MS. CARTER: Commissioner René.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Approved.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Approval.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Approve.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. Our last paragraph

here, I think is how we currently operate; is that correct? Here, we

are providing notice only to the registered neighborhood associations

within the ward of the subject property.

MS. CARTER: (Nods head for no.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So that's not correct so

clarification from Staff.

MS. CARTER: I'm sorry. I need to clarify that. Staff op

operates under this guide right -- this one because we go that extra
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mile but the actual ordinance does not state all. It only says the

neighborhood to the subject property so they're only suppose to do --

required to do one neighborhood association. However, Staff goes

the extra mile to give -- ask them to send it to the whole ward, all of

the ward presidents.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So just so that we're clear,

currently this is not a part of our ordinance. Staff has been practicing

this particular proposal. The ordinance only states to the

neighborhood association that's most directly affected for the subject

property. So this would be to expand to the entire ward. So

Commissioners, at this time, I'll entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Case Number 2012Z-018-09, I

would like to recommend approval but with a little bit of change I

think of the paragraph maybe that's 2E, that it would read, the

department shall require the applicant give notice by regular mail to

the City of East Point Neighborhood Association President of all wards

within the subject property. Would that not be more?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: But I think you said all wards and

I think it would only be one ward; correct.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: The subject property would only

line one ward.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I'm sorry, within the ward of the
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subject property.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Within which the subject

property is located.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So you're change to that,

Commissioner -- to this proposal Commissioner Tucker, I don't know

if I heard you say registered with the City of East Point would -- and I

think the only way that we couldn't do the notification is if they are

registered so that we have contact information so we want to keep

in --

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I would agree.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: -- registered City of East Point

Neighborhood Associations, correct?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Yeah, I was just not sure that

meant registered mail --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay, I understand. Yes, so that

means registered neighborhood associations with the City of East

Point so that we would have contact information. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Tucker and seconded by Commissioner Bryant. Is there any

discussion?

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Discussion.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: I can truly say that the
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department of Planning and Zoning they are sending those applicants

out to the neighborhood president because I have been receiving the

applicants on a monthly basis when they have people in a particular

ward and we do have our meetings. Our meetings are held every

month through the summer also so I can truly say that the Planning

and Zoning are sending over those a lot.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you Commissioner

Bryant. Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I just want it read one more time.

You added something and I'm not sure how that -- but how does it

read now?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: I think it actually probably goes

back to the way it was printed. I think Commissioner Tucker was

thinking that registered meant registered mail and we clarified that

so the -- correct me if I'm wrong, Commissioner Tucker -- it's the --

the motion and the second is the department shall require that the

applicant give notice by regular mail to the only registered City of

East Point Neighborhood Association President of the ward of the

subject property. Is that correct?

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: That's right.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I guess this is the perfect time but
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just for any citizens that's watching, I just wanted to be sure that

they understand that we as the Commissioner are trying to create a

balance -- a fair balance between the applicants and also the citizens,

the applicants, the duty that they have to provide. We are already --

as we found in our Work Sessions, we are one of the most

aggressive Cities in getting out the information to citizens and there's

a lot of burden on applicant or most times citizens as well. So we're

just trying to create balance.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Exactly. Okay. Commissioner

Tucker, I'm glad that the brought that up and I'm not sure if Staff is

within the matrix this evening but Commissioner Tucker is exactly

correct. The City of East Point did -- the Planning and Zoning did an

analysis of the municipalities will be the county with the exception of

the City of Atlanta, I believe, and I believe it was nine or so

difference municipalities and the City of East Point requires I think

the most forms of notification. How many municipalities are there?

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: It's eleven.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Eleven, okay. So with eleven

municipalities within Fulton County and I believe that the City of East

Point based on that matrix provides the most forms of notification so

thank you for bringing that point up. Okay. So there any other

discussion?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. I think we're ready for the

Roll Call vote. The recommendation is -- the motion is to recommend
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approval to the Council.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner René.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: Approve.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Approve.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you, Staff. This takes us

down to announcements. We are finish with our New Business.

Staff, do you have any announcements for this evening?

VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Staff, do you have any

announcements for this evening?

MS. CARTER: One question for legal. Just a moment.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

MS. CARTER: No, there are no announcements.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: No announcements. Thank you.

Commissioners, are there any announcement?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Seeing none, I'll entertain

to motion for adjournment.

IX. ADJOURNMENT:

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there is second?

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares and seconded by Commissioner Mallory that we adjourn. All

in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

This meeting is now adjourned. Thank you.

(Whereupon this concludes the City of East Point Planning &

Zoning meeting for September 20, 2012.)
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pages 1 through 25 represent a true and correct transcript that I am

not in any way financially interested in the result of said case.

I am here as an independent contractor for East Point

Planning & Zoning Commission.

I was contacted by the offices of East Point Planning & Zoning

Commission to provide stenography services to take down the

meeting minutes.

The foregoing meeting for the City of East Point Planning &

Zoning Commission on September 20, 2012, at 7 o'clock P.M. were

taken down by me and transcribed by me this 5th day of October,

2012.
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